
Please ask for Amanda Taylor: Telephone 01775 764837 
e-mail: amandataylor@sholland.gov.uk

DECISION 
NOTICE
NOTICE OF DECISION MADE BY PORTFOLIO HOLDER 
DECISION: Lawton 5.15

(To be made available at the main offices of the Council and sent to all members of the 
Council within 3 working days of the decision.)

The Council’s Constitution (Standing Order 27 – Recording of Executive Decisions; Part 3
Section D4 – Delegations to Cabinet members; and Part 4 D Access to Information
Procedure Rules) requires that when any decision is made by an individual Portfolio
Holder a record of the decision, including a statement of the reasons for it and any
alternative options considered and rejected, must be prepared and published normally
within 3 working days.

In accordance with this requirement notice is hereby given that Councillor C J Lawton, 
being the Portfolio Holder for Housing, made the decision detailed below on Wednesday 2 
March 2016.  This decision is not a key decision. 

This notice is published on Wednesday 2 March 2016.

In accordance with the terms of the Constitution the decision detailed below will come into
force, and may then be implemented, on Thursday 10 March 2016 (i.e. following the
expiry of 5 working days following the date of publication of this notice) unless during that
period a notice, signed by at least one Councillor and complying with the Council’s
Constitution (Part 3 Section D – Overview and Scrutiny (including Call-In Procedures)), is
served on the Executive Manager Governance requesting that the decision be called-in
and Executive Manager Governance approves the request for call-in. (The call-in period
expires at 5pm on the 5th working day following publication of this notice, or 4.30pm if the
5th working day is a Friday.)

For office use :
Notice and report e-
mailed to EMT, 
Democratic 
Services, Comms 
Team and Report 
Author , on  
02.03.16

Public Document Pack



Matter to which decision relates

Restrictive covenant on a former Council owned dwelling – To consider a request for the 
covenant to be released or varied (report of the Executive Director Place enclosed).  

DECISION (IF URGENT PROVIDE REASONS)

a) That the Council provide consent for the construction of no. 75 Spalding Road, 
Holbeach. The final terms to be agreed by the Housing Landlord Manager in 
consultation with the Portfolio Holder for Housing;

b) That the applicant be responsible for reimbursing the Council’s legal and valuation 
fees whether or not the matter proceeds to completion; and

c) That the applicant be responsible for reimbursing the Council’s administrative costs, 
including officer time, in respect of this matter, whether or not it proceeds to 
completion.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED

a) Do Nothing; or 

b) To provide consent for the construction of no. 75 Spalding Road, Holbeach, for a 
financial consideration.

REASON OR REASONS FOR THE DECISION

a) To legitimise the construction of no. 75 Spalding Road, but to enable the Council to 
retain control. It is only due to the particular nature and extent of the retained 
land in this instance that it would not be necessary to pay consideration as 
compensation for breach of the covenant.

b) The Council will recover all costs incurred in respect of this matter from the applicant, 
including officer time.

Conflicts of interest declared by an executive member, relating to the decision, and 
any dispensations granted

None



R E P O R T

1 Lawton 5.15 - Restrictive covenant on a former Council owned dwelling - 
To consider a request for the covenant to be released or varied.  (Report 
of the Executive Director Place enclosed.)

(Pages 
1 - 6)



This page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Executive Director Place

To: Portfolio Holder for Housing 
(Councillor C J Lawton) 

(Author: Housing Landlord Manager – Richard Scorthorne)

Subject: Restrictive covenant on a former Council owned dwelling

Purpose: To consider a request for the covenant to be released or varied

Recommendations: 

1) That the Council provide consent for the construction of no. 75 Spalding Road, Holbeach. 
The final terms to be agreed by the Housing Landlord Manager in consultation with the 
Portfolio Holder for Housing;

2) That the applicant be responsible for reimbursing the Council’s legal and valuation fees 
whether or not the matter proceeds to completion; and

3) That the applicant be responsible for reimbursing the Council’s administrative costs, including 
officer time, in respect of this matter, whether or not it proceeds to completion.

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 In 1972, the Council sold no. 77 Spalding Road, Holbeach. The sale included a restrictive 
covenant which stated:

“For the benefit and protection of the residue of the Council’s Estate or any part or part 
thereof and so as to bind as far as may be the Property into whosoever hands the same 
may come the Purchasers jointly and severally covenant with the Council that the 
Purchasers and their successors in title will at all times hereafter observe and perform the 
restrictions and stipulations set out [below] but so that the Purchaser shall not be liable for a 
breach of this covenant occurring on or in respect of the Property or any part thereof after 
the Purchaser shall have parted with all interest therein…..

2. No additions enlargements or structural alterations shall be made to the Property 
nor shall any subsidiary or other buildings be erected on the Property without the consent 
in writing of the Council (meaning the Council personally or its Statutory successor) first 
had and obtained.”

1.2 This covenant means that, before no. 77 Spalding Road could be extended or any other 
buildings added, the Council’s permission (in addition to any planning permissions etc.) 
must be obtained.

1.3 In 2010, the owner of no. 77 was granted planning permission (under reference number 
H09-0757-10) for a three bedroom detached house to be built within the garden of no. 77. 
That house was built in 2012 and is now known as no. 75 Spalding Road. No. 77 was then 
sold and the owners moved into no. 75. A plan is included in Appendix A to this report which 
shows the location of both dwellings.

Page 1

Agenda Item 1



1.4 Unfortunately, although planning permission was granted for the construction of no. 75, the 
owner of no. 77 at that time was unaware of the restrictive covenant, so did not seek the 
Council’s approval for it to be either removed or varied to permit the construction of the new 
dwelling.

1.5 The restrictive covenant remains in place now. Whilst the Council has not sought to enforce 
the covenant, the owner of no. 75 now wishes to sell their home but is unable to do so until 
the covenant has either been varied or released.

1.6 Advice has been sought from Legal Services Lincolnshire about this request because 
restrictive covenants can be complex. This case is no exception. The critical point to be 
considered is whether there has been a “diminution” (reduction) in the value of the Council’s 
retained land, as that determines if the Council is able to charge a financial consideration for 
granting the request. The Council’s valuer has advised that, as the Council no longer retains 
ownership of any land/property within the immediate vicinity of no. 75 (the next nearest 
Council owned property is 13 doors away from no. 75), there has been no diminution in 
value. 

1.7 Following the advice from the Council’s valuer, Legal Services Lincolnshire have advised 
that the Council should provide consent for the construction of no. 75 but not remove or 
vary the covenant. This would legitimise the construction but enable the Council to retain 
control. The advice further states that it should be noted that it is only due to the particular 
nature and extent of the retained land in this instance that it would not be necessary to pay 
consideration as compensation for breach of the covenant.

1.8 Consultation has been carried out with ward members, the Portfolio Holder and relevant 
officers. No adverse comments were received, but two comments mentioned that the 
applicant should cover all of the Council’s expenses, including officer time. This is included 
within the recommendations to this report.

2.0 OPTIONS

2.1 Option 1 – Do Nothing (not recommended)

2.1.1 This option would mean that the restrictive covenant would remain in place and would 
prevent the applicant from being able to sell their home. This may be open to legal 
challenge and present a potential reputational risk. This option is not recommended.

2.2 Option 2 – To provide consent for the construction of no. 75 Spalding Road, Holbeach, for 
no financial consideration (recommended)

2.2.1 The advice from Legal Services Lincolnshire and the Council’s valuer mean that the Council 
is unable to charge a consideration for the applicant’s request. It is only due to the particular 
nature and extent of the Council’s retained land in this instance that it would not be 
necessary to pay consideration as compensation for breach of the covenant. On the basis 
that the applicant would be required to pay the Council’s fees in respect of this matter 
(including legal fees and costs for officer time) this option is recommended.

2.3 Option 3 – To provide consent for the construction of no. 75 Spalding Road, Holbeach, for a 
financial consideration (not recommended)

2.3.1 Legal Services Lincolnshire have indicated that this is a potential option for the Council, but 
that it may be open to legal challenge and present a reputational risk. In addition, this 
approach would be contrary to the Council’s usual process of obtaining a valuation. Based 
on the legal advice received, this option is not recommended.

Page 2



3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1 To legitimise the construction of no. 75 Spalding Road, but to enable the Council to retain 
control. It is only due to the particular nature and extent of the retained land in this instance 
that it would not be necessary to pay consideration as compensation for breach of the 
covenant.

3.2 The Council will recover all costs incurred in respect of this matter from the applicant, 
including officer time.

4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1 To legitimise the construction of no. 75 Spalding Road, but to enable the Council to retain 
control. It is only due to the particular nature and extent of the retained land in this instance 
that it would not be necessary to pay consideration as compensation for breach of the 
covenant.

4.2 The Council will recover all costs incurred in respect of this matter from the applicant, 
including officer time.

5.0 IMPLICATIONS

5.1 Constitution & Legal

5.1.1 Advice has been sought from Legal Services Lincolnshire about this request because 
restrictive covenants can be complex. This case is no exception. The critical point to be 
considered is whether there has been a “diminution” (reduction) in the value of the Council’s 
retained land, as that determines if the Council is able to charge a financial consideration for 
granting the request. The Council’s valuer has advised that, as the Council no longer retains 
ownership of any land/property within the immediate vicinity of no. 75 (the next nearest 
Council owned property is 13 doors away from no. 75), there has been no diminution in 
value. 

5.1.2 Following the advice from the Council’s valuer, Legal Services Lincolnshire have advised 
that the Council should provide consent for the construction of no. 75 but not remove or 
vary the covenant. This would legitimise the construction but enable the Council to retain 
control. The advice further states that it should be noted that it is only due to the particular 
nature and extent of the retained land in this instance that it would not be necessary to pay 
consideration as compensation for breach of the covenant.

5.2 Contracts

5.3.1 The nature of this matter means it will involve some contractual work and implications 
including the applicant being required to pay the Council’s legal and valuation fees. All legal 
work on behalf of the Council will be undertaken by Legal Services Lincolnshire.

5.4 Financial 

5.4.1 The Council will recover all costs incurred in respect of this matter from the applicant, 
including officer time.

5.5 Risk Management 

5.5.1 The recommendations to this report avoid the risk of legal challenge and reputational risk to 
the Council. This is explained further in section 2.0 of this report.

Page 3



5.6 Stakeholders / Consultation / Timescales

5.6.1 Consultation has been carried out with ward members, the Portfolio Holder and relevant 
officers. No adverse comments were received, but two comments mentioned that the 
applicant should cover all of the Council’s expenses, including officer time. This is included 
within the recommendations to this report.

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1 This report and its recommendations affect the Holbeach Town ward only.

7.0 ACRONYMS 

7.1 None

Background papers:- None

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Richard Scorthorne, Housing Landlord Manager
Telephone Number: 01775 764671
Email: rscorthorne@sholland.gov.uk 

Key Decision: No 

Exempt Decision: No 

This report refers to a Discretionary Service 

Appendices attached to this report:
Appendix A – Location Plan

Page 4

%5CBCF01Democratic%20ServicesCommitteeCommitteeReport%20Guide2014THE%20COMMITTEE%20REPORT%20GUIDE_JUNE%202014.doc
mailto:rscorthorne@sholland.gov.uk


Appendix A – Location Plan

75 Spalding Road, Holbeach

77 Spalding Road, Holbeach

P
age 5



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Lawton 5.15 - Restrictive covenant on a former Council owned dwelling

